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IMPORTANT  NOTICE  REGARDING  ACCEPTANCE  OF  NOTICES
FOR  PUBLICATION  IN  THE  WEEKLY  “GAZETTE”

ATTENTION is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance
of Notices for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of
publication. All Government Departments, Corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times
of applications in respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared
by giving adequate time both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those
interested in the contents of such notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect
of corrections pertaining to notification will not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e.
notices for publication in the weekly Gazette of 23rd November, 2012 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 09th
November, 2012.

B. K. S. RAVINDRA,
Acting Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing,
Colombo 08,
June 23, 2012.

AA

N. B :-  Parts III and IV (A) of the Gazette No. 1,782 of 25.10.2012 were not published.
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Appointments by the President

No.  844 of 2012

DIRF/RECT/277/AY.

SRI     LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Commissions approved by His Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has been pleased to approve the
Commissioning of the under mentioned gentlemen in the rank of
Lieutenant in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect

No. 843 of 2012

DIRF/RECT/277/AY.

SRI     LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Commissions approved by His Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has been pleased to approve the
Commissioning of the under mentioned Gentlemen and Ladies in the
rank of Captain/Lieutenant in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army, with effect from 09th November, 2011 and their posting to
the Sri Lanka Signal Corps with effect from the same date.

(a) Information Technology Officers/Lady Officers in the rank of
Captain with effect from 09th November, 2011:-

IDIRIMUNI DULARI CHANDIMA RODRIGO;
DOLEWATHTHAGE SARANGI ANUPAMA DOLAWATHTHA;
JANAK KAVINDA ABEYSIRIWARDANA;
MUHANDIRAM ARACHCHILAGE LAHIRU SANJAYA WIPULAGUNA;
JAYAWARDHANA KANKANAMGE ASANKA SUDESH;
JAYASOORIYAGE HARSHA HEMANATH PERERA;
NAPAGODA ARACHCHILAGE ARAVINDA PRASAD NAPAGODA.

(b) Information Technology Officers in the rank of Lieutenant with
effect from 09th November, 2011:-

UPUL INDIKA BANDARA WEWEGEDARA;
DAYA KULASIRI SENEWIRATHNE;
NIRMAL GEETHANGA MADANAYAKA;
SAMPATH DIAS PALLIYAGURUGE.

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSHA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
08th October, 2012.

10-153

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/CAS/79.

SRI     LANKA    ARMY—VOLUNTEER    FORCE

Cashiering from the Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force
approved by His Excellency the President

CASHIERING

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the cashiering of the
under mentioned Officer from the Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force
with effect from 27th October, 2011.

Second Lieutenant RAJAPAKSHA MUDALIGE SUDATH ROHANA, SLNG
(O/5900);

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSHA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
07th June, 2012.

11-152

from the 09th November, 2011 and their posting to the Sri Lanka
Electrical and Mechanical Engineers Regiment with effect from the
same date.

Engineering Officers in the rank of Lieutenant with effect from
09th November, 2011:-

HEWAGAMAGE PASINDU LAKMAL;
MUTHUWANA ACHARIGE DIMUTHU PRIYADARSHANA;
MAINATHTHUGE SUSANTHA;
UDUGAL MOTEGE DARSHANA SAMPATH JAYASINGHE;
PATTIYA GARDIHEWAGE YASMITHA DANIDU;
HIKADU GAMARALALAGE DON SACHITHA LAKMAL;
DHANUKA NADEERA DUWAGE;
ADIKARI MUDIYANSELAGE MADURANGA CHAMARA ADIKARI;
SOLANGA ARACHCHIGE KELUM NISHANTHA JAYASENA.

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSHA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
08th October, 2012.

11-154
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No. 845 of 2012

DIRF/RECT/266/AY.

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR  FORCE

Commissions approved by His Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has been pleased to approve the
commissioning of the under mentioned Officer Cadets in the rank of
Second Lieutenant in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with
effect from 27th December, 2011 in the order of seniority shown and
their posting to the Regiments/Corps stated against their names with
effect from the same date.

C/57941 officer Cadet DINAYADURA DILAN JANAKA SILVA - Sri
Lanka Armoured Corps;

C/57928 officer Cadet EKANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE DILEEPA

LAHIRU EKANAYAKA - Sri Lanka Signal Corps;
C/57912 officer Cadet NAYOMAL ROSHEN YOHAN CABRAL - Sri

Lanka Artillery;
C/57913 officer Cadet GANEHI ACHCHILLAGE PRASANNA ENDIKA

KUMARA DHARMASENA - Corps of Sri Lanka Engineers;
C/57886 officer Cadet DAMMALAGE NILANKA RUKMAL - Sri Lanka

Sinha Regiment;
C/57927 officer Cadet WIDANALAGE MANOJ CHATHURA CHAMAL

ALWIS - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57908 officer Cadet BOMALUWE GEDARA DUSHAN MADUHARSHA

WEERASINGHE - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57917 officer Cadet MENIKA DEWAYALAGE AMILA KELUM

JAYATISSA - Mechanized Infantry Regiment;
C/57946 officer Cadet BELIGODA ABARANA GEDARA UDARA

WIJAYANGA - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/57876 officer Cadet PANAMBARAGE SANJAY MAXIMAS FERNANDO

- The Gemunu Watch;
C/57923 officer Cadet PARAGAHATHOTA PATHIRAGE DAMITH

SANJEEWA - Sri Lanka Army Ordanance Corps;
C/57892 officer Cadet MALAWARA ARACHCHIGE CHATHURA

CHINTHANA MALAWARAARACHCHI - Sri Lanka Electrical and Mechanical
Engineers Regiment;

C/57925 officer Cadet MENIKPURA DEWAGE MANOJ ASANKA

ABEYRATHNE - Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps;
C/57901 officer Cadet KONARA MUDIYANSELAGE DUMINDA

SUBASHANA SOMARATHNE - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57926 officer Cadet GEORGEGE EROSH CHANDRA - Corps of

Engineer Services;
C/57895 officer Cadet WICKRAMASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE

VIYALAMUNNE GEDARA NAWEEN CHINTHAKA WICKRAMASINGHE - The
Gajaba Regiment;

C/57915 officer Cadet TENNAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE SAHAN

MADUSHANKA TENNAKOON - Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;

C/57954 officer Cadet PRASANNA KELUM SENARATH BOPEGEDARA -
Sri Lanka Corps of Military Police;

C/57922 officer Cadet RANKOTH GEDARA INDIKA SAMPATH KUMARA

- Sri Lanka Army Service Corps;
C/57947 officer Cadet BUWANAYAKA SITHTHARALAGE JAGATH

WIJESIRI BUWANAYAKA - Sri Lanka Army Service Corps;
C/57938 officer Cadet RANASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE AMAL

UDAYANGA RANASINGHE - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57952 officer Cadet ABEYKOON MUDIYANSELAGE MADURA

MAHESH THILAKARATHNA - Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;
C/57955 officer Cadet GAMACHCHIGE PUBUDU ROHITHA - The

Gajaba Regiment;
C/57943 officer Cadet AYESH CHATHURANGA MADANAYAKE - Sri

Lanka Corps of Military Police;
C/57932 officer Cadet DEWARAJAGE SANJAYA RUWANTISSA - Sri

Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57963 officer Cadet EKANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE THARUKA

EKANAYAKA - Sri Lanka Artillery;
C/57903 officer Cadet SANDARADURA SANDUN LAKRUWAN DE SILVA

- Sri Lanka Armoured Corps;
C/57956 officer Cadet MASHEWGE PRASATH PRIYADARSHANA -

Corps of Sri Lanka Engineers;
C/57896 officer Cadet RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE THARUKA

MADURANGA - Sri Lanka Army Ordanance Corps;
C/57897 officer Cadet MAHANAMA SIRIWARDENA HASITHA

MADUSHAN - The Gajaba Regiment;
C/57919 officer Cadet AMILA PRASATH KARIYAWASAM - Sri Lanka

Signal Corps;
C/57902 officer Cadet DEWPURA DEVAGE DARSHANA MADUSHAN

DEWPURA - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/57911 officer Cadet RANASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE WIYAN BHAGYA

DISSANAYAKE - The Gemunu Watch;
C/57964 officer Cadet JAYASING PALKUMBURUGE HARSHA

PRIYANKARA JAYASINGHE - The Gajaba Regiment;
C/57874 officer Cadet WANNI ARACHCHI KANKANAMGE CHAMIL

RANGANA - The Gemunu Watch;
C/57929 officer Cadet SUMEDHA MADUSANKA BASNAYAKE - Sri

Lanka Sinha Regiment;
C/57880 officer Cadet PATHIRENNEHELAGE DANUSHKA RUWAN

KUMARASINGHE - The Gajaba Regiment;
C/57894 officer Cadet HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE INDIKA ASELA

KUMARA - Sri Lanka Armoured Corps;
C/57875 officer Cadet DEWATHA PEDIGE GRESHAN MADUSHANKA

- Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;
C/57949 officer Cadet AMARATHUN ACHCHIMADDUMAGE DON DILAN

SAMPATH - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/57378 officer Cadet RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE MAHESH

BUDDIKA RATHNAYAKE - Sri Lanka Artillery;
C/57757 officer Cadet WIJESUNDARA DISSANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE

NUWAN BUDDIKA WIJESUNDARA - Corps of Sri Lanka Engineers;
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No. 846 of 2012

DIRF/RECT/266/AY.

SRI     LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Commissions approved by His Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has been pleased to approve the
Commissioning of the undermentioned Officer Cadets in the rank of
Second Lieutenant in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with
effect from 02nd July, 2012 in the order of seniority shown and their
posting to the Regiments/Corps stated against their names with
effect from the same date.

C/58076 Officer Cadet UKWATHTHA ACHARIGE SACHITH USHANGA

UKWATHTHA - Sri Lanka Artillery;

C/57885 officer Cadet NILANKA JAYASHAN ARUMAPPERUMACHCHI -
The Gajaba Regiment;

C/57879 officer Cadet CHANAKA CHATHURANGA RAJAPAKSHA - Sri
Lanka Light Infantry;

C/57871 officer Cadet USWATTA LIYANEGE SHAMILA LASHAN PERERA

- Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;
C/57870 officer Cadet MAHAGAMA VITHANALAGE AMILA CHINTHAKA

LAKMAL - Sri Lanka Armoured Corps;
C/57937 officer Cadet MAWEEKOTUWE GEDARA SANDARUWAN

JANAKA PREMACHANDRA - Sri Lanka Artillery;
C/57890 officer Cadet SUPUN SAMPATH WITHANAGE - The Gajaba

Regiment;
C/57957 officer Cadet LIHINIKADU ARACHCHIGE DON KOSALA

ANURUDDA - The Gemunu Watch;
C/57868 officer Cadet MORAPITIGE RUWAN PRADEEP WIMALASENA

- Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57910 officer Cadet OSHADHA NIMENDRA BANDARA AMUNUGAMA

- The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/57888 officer Cadet GALAHA KUMBURAGE NIPUN HASANKA

KARUNARATHNA - Corps of Sri Lanka Engineers;
C/57887 officer Cadet MAHARAGE KASUN SHAMINDA LAKMAL - The

Gajaba Regiment;
C/57352 officer Cadet HIRAN DILEEPA ABEYSOORIYA - Sri Lanka

Sinha Regiment;
C/57605 officer Cadet JAYAMAHA HITIHAMILLAGE ISURU DASAN

JAYAMAHA - The Gamunu Watch;
C/57951 officer Cadet SCHIRA KANISHKA KODIKARA - Sri Lanka

Light Infantry;
C/57878 officer Cadet NIWANTHA SAMPATH JAYASINGHE - The

Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/57646 officer Cadet WEERASURIYA ARACHCHIGE RAVEEN SACHINDA

WEERASURIYA - Sri Lanka Artillery;
C/57905 officer Cadet CHATHURA JAYASANKA SAMARADIWAKARA

WICKRAMASINGE - Sri Lanka Armoured Corps;
C/57762 officer Cadet WEERAPPULIGE RUWAN HEMANTHA - The

Gajaba Regiment;
C/57869 officer Cadet ILAKOTULENA GAMARALLAGE LAHIRU

PRIYADARSANA - Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;
C/57889 officer Cadet KILLAPANAGE DON SAMINDA DILSHANE

PERERA - Sri Lanka Artillery;
C/57867 officer Cadet WELLALAGE JANATHA SURENDRA - The

Gemunu Watch;
C/57962 officer Cadet ALAGIYAWADU DIMUTHU PATHMA

KARUNARATHNA - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/57948 officer Cadet KODITHUWAKKU MADANAYAKA SAJITH IMAL

- The Gajaba Regiment;
C/57609 officer Cadet RAJAKARUNA MUDIYANSELAGE RAJITHA

MADUSANKA RAJAKARUNA - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57777 officer Cadet UDAGE GEDARA DARSHANA SRIMAL UDAGE

- The Gajaba Regiment;

C/57877 officer Cadet RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE AMILA

THUSHARA RATHNAYAKE - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/57648 officer Cadet MAHARA HETTIARACHCHIGE DON THARAKA

MADURA APPUHAMI - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57872 officer Cadet PALLEYWATTA KORALALAGE MOHAN

MALINDA PERERA - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/57944 officer Cadet PETHUM MADUSANKA MEDAGAMA LIYANAGE

- The Gajaba Regiment;
C/57620 officer Cadet KADUGODAGE CHATHURANGA KARUNARATHNA

- Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57884 officer Cadet WITHANAGE ASANKA - The Vijayabahu

Infantry Regiment;
C/57891 officer Cadet PATHIRANNEHALAGE ISANKA PATHIRANA -

The Gajaba Regiment;
C/57622 officer Cadet GOONAPINUWALAGE MALITH MADUSHANKA

WEERASINGHE - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57756 officer Cadet PATHIRANALAGE THARINDU IMALKA

KUMARATHUNGA - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/57779 officer Cadet ATTANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE MAHENDRA

PADMAL RATHNAYAKE - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/57916 officer Cadet KATARE GEDARA AMILA DEEPAL KULARATHNA

- The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSHA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and
Urban Development.

Colombo,
08th October, 2012.

11-77
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C/58067 Officer Cadet ADHIKARI MUDIYANSELAGE HASINTHA

PRIYALAL - Sri Lanka Armoured Corps;
C/58073 Officer Cadet VIDURA DINETH WANNIARACHCHI - Sri

Lanka Army Ordanance Corps;
C/58103 Officer Cadet BALASOORIYA MUDIYANSELAGE DAMMIKA

JAYANTHA BALASOORIYA - Sri Lanka Army Service Corps;
C/57940 Officer Cadet ARAMBELAGE AMILA KAUSHALYA PERERA -

Sri Lanka Signal Corps;
C/58068 Officer Cadet ANDREW MANOJ RANAWAKA - Sri Lanka

Light Infantry;
C/58082 Officer Cadet RANNULA THUSHAN MILANGA DE ZOYSA -

Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;
C/58088 Officer Cadet MURUTHANGE GEDARA DHANUSHKA GAYAN

KUMARASINGHE - Corps of Sri Lanka Engineers;
C/58061 Officer Cadet KODIPPILIKANDA WITHANAGE MALITHA

CHATHURANGA - The Vijayabau Infantry Regiment;
C/58062 Officer Cadet AITHTHAPPULIGE ISURU HESHAN

KARUNATHILAKA - Mechanized Infantry Regiment;
C/58077 Officer Cadet HIRAN RATHNAYAKE - The Gemunu Watch;
C/57935 Officer Cadet SENAVIRATHNAGE JEEWAN SENAVIRATHNA -

The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/58063 Officer Cadet WEWELWALA HEWAGE LAHIRU GAYAN

WEWELWALA - Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps;
C/58102 Officer Cadet KARIYAWASAM PATHIRAGE DILAN INDIKA

JAYATHILAKE - The Gajaba Regiment;
C/58084 Officer Cadet WILLORAGE DAVID NEOMAL PRADEEP PERERA

- The Gemunu Watch;
C/57909 Officer Cadet RAMANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE NISHANTHA

RANJAN JAYASUNDARA - Corps of Engineer Services;
C/58064 Officer Cadet ATTHANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE LALITH

KUMARA - Sri Lanka Singha Regiment;
C/57904 Officer Cadet SAMARAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE THILINA

INDUNIL BANDARA SAMARAKOON - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/58069 Officer Cadet WEERAWATHTHA KANKANAMALAGE SAJITH

DHARSHAN WEERAWATHTHA - Sri Lanka Corps of Military Police;
C/58098 Officer Cadet PANADURA ARIYASINGHALAGE DON LAHIRU

SAMANPRIYA - Corps of Sri Lanka Engineers;
C/58087 Officer Cadet POLWATTE KEKAMLAGE SUMITH NISHANTHA

DISSANAYAKA - The Gemunu Watch;
C/57934 Officer Cadet PAYAGALAGE SURATH CHAMIKARA FERNANDO

- Mechanized Infantry Regiment;
C/58086 Officer Cadet HETTIARACHCHIGE NUWAN PRIYADHARSHANA

- Sri Lanka Signal Corps;
C/58085 Officer Cadet NANAYAKKARA KAPPATIDUWAGE BHATHIYA

SIRINAGE NANAYAKKARA - Sri Lanka Armoured Corps;
C/58075 Officer Cadet YOHAN NIROSHA WICKRAMASINGHA - Sri

Lanka Singha Regiment;
C/57933 Officer Cadet RAJAPAKSHA MUDIYANSELAGE THARINDU

SANDARUWAN RAJAPAKSHA - Sri Lanka Artillery;
C/57921 Officer Cadet ADHIKARI KOBBAPOLA PAHALAGAMA GEDARA

SHASHIKA JAYAMPATHI DISSANAYAKA - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
C/58059 Officer Cadet MUTHUTHANTHRI BASTHIYANGE JANITH

NIRMAL FERNANDO - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
C/58078 Officer Cadet JAYANTHA AMARANATH SRI LANKANATH

JAYASINGHE - Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;
C/58058 Officer Cadet ERAMUDUGODA GAMAGE YASAS MADUSHAN

GAMAGE - The Gemunu Watch;
C/58071 Officer Cadet AMARASINGHA MUDIYANSELAGE

JANARANJANA CHARITHA - The Gemunu Watch;
C/57930 Officer Cadet WIJESINGHA MUDIYANSELAGE DINESH

PRIYADARSHANA WIJESINGHA - The Gajaba Regiment;

C/57939 Officer Cadet DIGALA MUDIYANSELAGE NUWAN THILANKA
DIGALA - The Gajaba Regiment;

C/58081 Officer Cadet GAMACHCHIGE HANSAJITH RAVISHANKA
GAMACHCHIGE - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;

C/58080 Officer Cadet KONARA MUDIYANSELAGE NANDANA VIKUM
BANDARA - The Gemunu Watch;

C/58093 Officer Cadet ALUTHDUWAHEWA PATHUM MADUSHANKA
GUNAWARDHANA - Corps of Sri Lanka Engineers;

C/58092 Officer Cadet HEWA RANDUNUGE SAMPATH SRI JAYAMANNA
- Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;

C/58104 Officer Cadet DARSHANA RUWANPATH GAMAGE - The
Gajaba Regiment;

C/57906 Officer Cadet BOGAHADENIYAGE SUPUN RAJITHA
SAMARASEKARA - Sri Lanka Armoured Corps;

C/58100 Officer Cadet KUMBURE HENE GAMARALALAGE LAKMAL
SURESHA NILANGA - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;

C/58090 Officer Cadet SISILA NIWANKA WITHANAGE - Sri Lanka
Artillery;

C/58072 Officer Cadet WANNINAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDIMA
NUWAN DISSANAYAKA - The Gajaba Regiment;

C/58105 Officer Cadet RUPASINGHAGE KEERTHI RUPASINGHA - The
Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;

C/57920 Officer Cadet YAKDEHI ARACHCHILLAGE KANCHANA
PRADEEP MADUSHANKA - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;

C/58079 Officer Cadet DINAYADURA SANDUN UDAYANGA DE SILVA
- The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;

C/58057 Officer Cadet HEDENIYA VIDANALAGE BUDDHI CHAMARA
MADUSHANKA HEDENIYA - Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;

C/57899 Officer Cadet JAJASINGHA SIRIWARDANAGE WARUNA  ASHAN
- The Gajaba Regiment;

C/58083 Officer Cadet DEWASINGHA GEDARA INDIKA MADUSHANKA
BANDARA - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;

C/57893 Officer Cadet BATHAMURE GEDARA MUDIYANSELAGE
KASSAPA JAYASHRI WEERARATHNA - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;

C/57778 Officer Cadet ILANDARI DEWAGE ISHARA JAYSINGHA - The
Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;

C/58060 Officer Cadet RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE CHAMEERA
NALAKA ABEYSINGHE - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;

C/58099 Officer Cadet RAJAPAKSHA RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE
SHAMEERA SACHINTHAKA BANDARA RATHNAYAKA - Sri Lanka Sinha
Regiment;

C/58056 Officer Cadet IMIHAMI MUDIYANSELAGE SAMAN BANDARA
RATHANAYAKA - The Gajaba Regiment;

C/57936 Officer Cadet KIRAGE MAHESH LAKMAL KODIKARA - Sri
Lanka Sinha Regiment;

C/58091 Officer Cadet MALLAWAARACHCHIGE BHATHIYA RAJINTHA
MALLAWAARACHCHI - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;

C/57900 Officer Cadet ABEWARDHANA ARACHCHI PIUMAL PRASANGA
JANAPPRIYA - The Gajaba Regiment;

C/57873 Officer Cadet THEBUWANA ARACHCHILAGE RUCHIRA
SHAMILA WICKRAMANAYAKA - The Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSE, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
08th October, 2012.

11-155
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No.  847 of 2012

NATIONAL CADET CORPS

Commissions approved by His Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has been pleased to approve the
commissioning of the under mentioned ladies and gentlemen in the
National Cadet Corps in the seniority mentioned below.

Commissioning in the rank of Temporary Captain with effect
from 23rd August, 2012:-

Mr. GALWADU ACHARIGE DILIP KUMARA;
Mr. NAGURTHAMBI NASUMUDEEN;
Mrs. VIDANAPATHIRANA IHALAGE VIPULI SAMANTHA

VIDANAPATHIRANA;
Mrs. SURASINGHE ARACHCHILAGE PUSHPAMALA SAMANKANTHI

JAYAMAHA;
Mr. KAPUGAMA JALIYAGE SUSIL WIJETHILAKA;
Mr. ALUTHGAMA HEWAGE ROHITHA AMARADASA;
Mr. HITIHAMI MUDIYANSELAGE AJITH CHANDRA KUMARA

No. 848 of 2012

SRI     LANKA    NAVY—REGULAR   NAVAL  FORCE

Confirmation in the Rank

TO the rank of Lieutenant with effect from 16th April, 2007:-

Acting Lieutenant HENDADURA CHAMINDA PRADEEP DE SILVA,
NRX 1784, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant (E) with effect from 03rd March, 2010:-

Acting Lieutenant (E) DAMITH TENUKA RAJAPAKSHA, NRE 2418,
SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant (SBS) with effect from 22nd May, 2010:-

Acting Lieutenant (SBS) EKANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE ROSHAN

PRADEEP EKANAYAKE, NRZ 2371, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant  with effect from 28th December, 2010:-

Acting Lieutenant YOSHITHA KANISHAKA RAJAPAKSA, NRX 2431,
SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant (L) with effect from 04th January, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant (L) SAMARAKOON APPUHAMILAGE SAMEERA

MADUSANKA SAMARAKOON, NRL 2441, SLN;

Other Appointments &c.,

Commissioning in the rank of Temporary Major with effect
from 31st August, 2012:-

Mr. WIJAMUNIGE DHARMADASA

Commissioning in the rank of Temporary Captain with effect
from 31st August, 2012:-

Mr. MATHTHOTA GAMARALALAGE ROHANA GAMAGE;
Mr. MERENNAGE SUDEERA JANANATHA GAMINI FONSEKA;
Mr. KUMARAGE RANJITH PREMATHILAKA

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and
Urban Development.

Colombo,
08th October, 2012.
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TO the rank of  Lieutenant (E) with effect from 08th March, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant (E) KAHANDA GAMAGE CHAMINDA PATHMAL,
NRE 2446, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant (S) with effect from 15th March, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant (S) GAYAN LAKMAL SUBASINGHE, NRS 2451,
SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant with effect from 22nd March, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant DELGAHA ANGE RANAVIYANNALAGE SANJEEWA

PATHUM RANAWEERA, NRX 2442, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant (PRO) with effect from 29th March, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant (PRO) MAPATUNA GAMAGE MALAN

CHATHURANGA MUNIDASA, NRR 2435, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant with effect from 29th March, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant WEESURUGEDARA MUDIYANSELAGE ISURU RAJITHA

LAKSHAN SURIYABANDARA, NRX 2439, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant with effect from 05th April, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant RAMANAYAKE APPUHAMILAGE KOMAL CHAMARA

UDAYANGA, NRX 2433, SLN;
Acting Lieutenant AKEESHA ASHAN DEENARATHNA, NRX 2437,

SLN
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TO the rank of  Lieutenant with effect from 19th April, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant DAHANAKA RALALAGE OSHADI DEEPAL

JAYATHILAKE, NRX 2436, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant with effect from 03rd May, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant LIYANA PATHIRANNAHELAGE SATHISHKA

MADUSHAN PATHIRANA, NRX 2444, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant with effect from 04th May, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant NUWAN DILANKA WEERARATHNA, NRX 2456,
SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant with effect from 10th May, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant SANDARADURA CHINTHAKA LAKMAL DE SILVA,
NRX 2438, SLN;

Acting Lieutenant RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE DIMUTHU

PRASANNA DESHAPRIYA, NRX 2440, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant (L) with effect from 17th May, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant (L) DEEGODA GAMAGE SANKA VIDURANGA

GAMAGE, NRL 2453, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant with effect from 24th May, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant MEEGAMU WELLA BALAGE INDIKA ROSHAN

KUMARA, NRX 2434, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant (L) with effect from 24th May, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant (L) KARUNANAYAKA HANDAGAMA RALALAGE

CHANAKA RANJAYA KARUNANAYAKA, NRL 2445, SLN;
Acting Lieutenant (L) EDUSOORIYA ARACHCHIGE SRIMAL HASHANTHA

WIJESINGHE, NRL 2454, SLN;
Acting Lieutenant (L) JAYANGA RIVIRAJA MEEGAHAGE, NRL 2455,

SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant with effect from 31st May, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant SAMMU KRISHANTHA PRADEEP KUMARA, NRX
2443, SLN;

TO the rank of  Lieutenant (S) with effect from 14th June, 2011:-

Acting Lieutenant (S) PALLEK KANKANAMGE DON JEEVAN PRASANNA

WIJEGUNAWARDANA, NRS 2450, SLN;

JSK COLOMBAGE, RSP, VSV, USP, rcds, psc,
Vice Admiral,

Commander of the Navy.

at Colombo,
15th October, 2012.
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No. 849 of 2012

SRI     LANKA    NAVY—REGULAR   NAVAL FORCE

Promotion  of  Officers

TO the rank of Acting Lieutenant with effect from 02nd January,
2012:-

Sub Lieutenant RATHNAWEERA PATABENDIGE AMITH SURANGA,
NRX 2475, SLN;

Sub Lieutenant MUNASINGHE PATHIRANNEHELAGE DARSHANA SRI

MUNASINGHE, NRX 2476, SLN;
Sub Lieutenant ILLUPPULI ACHCHILLAGE WARUNAKA BANDARA

EGALLA, NRX 2482, SLN;
Sub Lieutenant PASAN BHAGYA YATAMALAGALA PATHIRANA, NRX

2485, SLN;

TO the rank of Sub Lieutenant with effect from 02nd January, 2011:-

Acting Sub Lieutenant KATHTHOTA RALALAGE SHIRAN BUDDHIKA,
NRX 2490, SLN;

Acting Sub Lieutenant PUHULAGAMA DHEWAGE NISHANTHA THILINA

KUMARA, NRX 2493, SLN;

JSK COLOMBAGE, RSP, VSV, USP, rcds, psc,
Vice Admiral,

Commander of the Navy.

at Colombo,
15th October, 2012.
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No. 850 of 2012

I, Rauff Hakeem, Minister of Justice by virtue of powers vested in
me by Section 12 (1) of the Oaths Ordinance, do hereby appoint
following Attorney-at-Law as Commissioners for Oaths.

1. Mr. MOHOMMED MUBARAQ MOHAMED RIZVI, Attorney-at-
Law;

2. Mr. HETTI KANDAGE AKALANKA HETTIKANDA, Attorney-at-
Law;

3. Mr. WANNINAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE TIKIRIBANDA

WANNINAYAKA, Attorney-at-Law;
4. Mr. ACHALA CHINTHAKA WANNIARACHCHI, Attorney-at-Law;
5. Miss. NISANSALA SANDAMALI KOTTACHCHI, Attorney-at-Law;
6. Miss. DONA SHANI DUTHIKA GAMAGE, Attorney-at-Law;
7. Rev. ST. WARNAKULASURIYA MARY ANNE RAMANI FERNANDO,

Attorney-at-Law;
8. Miss. GODELLAWATTA ARACHCHIGE NISHMI RASANGIKA,

Attorney-at-Law;
9. Mr. SIVAPATHAM SENTHURAN, Attorney-at-Law;
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10. Miss. OVITIGALAGE KANCHANA NADEESHANI, Attorney-at-Law;
11. Mr. HEWA GAMAGE SAMPATH ANURADHA, Attorney-at-Law;
12. Mr. HEENKENDA MUDIYANSELAGE GNANATHILAKA BANDARA

KOTAKADENIYA, Attorney-at-Law;
13. Mrs. RAIGAMKORALAGE ISHANI SHRINIKA, Attorney-at-Law;
14. Mr. SURANGA SANJEEWA BOPEARACHCHI, Attorney-at-Law;
15. Mr. SRIMAL HARSHAN JAYASINGHE, Attorney-at-Law;
16. Mr. ATHAUDAGE RUWAN THUSITHA KUMARA, Attorney-at-

Law;
17. Miss. MADUSHA SAUNDARARAJ, Attorney-at-Law;
18. Miss. PRAVINI RANMALI ALGAMA, Attorney-at-Law;
19. Miss. KASTHURI ARACHCHI KANKANAMALAGE DILINI SASHIKALA

WIJESEKERA, Attorney-at-Law;
20. Mr. THARMARAJ VINODAN, Attorney-at-Law;
21. Mr. MEDAGEDARA DHAMMIKA LASANTHA AMARASINGHE,

Attorney-at-Law;
22. Mr. GAWRAWA EKSATH HEENATIGALA LIYANAGE, Attorney-at-

Law;
23. Miss. ROSALI BERNADEEN FERNANDO, Attorney-at-Law;
24. Mr. BANDATHEGE NANDANA PRIYANTHA SIRISENA, Attorney-at-

Law;
25. Mr. LIYANAGE JOSEPH THESHANTHA ENSLEY SILVA, Attorney-at-

Law;
26. Mr. RAJAKARUNA WANIGASEKARA MUDIYANSELAGE PODINILAME,

Attorney-at-Law;
27. Mrs. KUDALUGODA ARACHCHIGE MUDITHA, Attorney-at-Law;
28. Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE WIJAYA CHANDRATHILAKA

BANDARA, Attorney-at-Law;
29. Miss. UNDUGODAGE THILINI HASANGIKA RODRIGO, Attorney-

at-Law;
30. Mr. ADIKARI MUDIYANSELAGE LALITH PARAKRAMA ADIKARAM,

Attorney-at-Law;
31. Mr. MUDANNAYAKA MOHOTTALALAGE THAKSHILA AYOMI

MENIKE MUDANNAYAKA, Attorney-at-Law;
32. Mrs. KASTHURI ARACHCHIGE WASANA AYANTHI PERERA,

Attorney-at-Law;
33. Miss. BATANGALA KORALALAGE CHATHURANI JAYALAKSHIKA

MUNIDASA, Attorney-at-Law;
34. Miss. MALALASEKARAGE GUNANI CHANDRAKANTHI

MALALASEKARA, Attorney-at-Law;
35. Mr. DISSANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE WIJERATHNA, Attorney-at-

Law;
36. Mr. WEERASEKARA MUDIYANSELAGE WALAWWE ABEYRATHNA

BANDA, Attorney-at-Law;
37. Mr. AJITH NISHANTHA BANDARA HERATH, Attorney-at-Law;
38. Miss. HETTIARACHCHILLAGE GIMHANA HARSHANI

WICKRAMASURENDRA, Attorney-at-Law;
39. Miss. PRIYANGI HANARASINGHE, Attorney-at-Law;
40. Miss. MEEMANAGE KUMARI PRAMODANIE PERERA, Attorney-at-

Law;
41. Mrs. WANIGAMUNI MENIK WIJAYAMALI MENDIS, Attorney-at-

Law;
42. Miss. SAMITHRI CHANDIMA KUMARAWADU, Attorney-at-Law;
43. Mrs. MAGEDARA DURAGE SUJEEWA PRIYANTHI, Attorney-at-

Law;
44. Miss. NITHYA LOCHANA SIVAKAMI KUMARASAMI, Attorney-at-

Law;

45. Miss. AMARATHUNGA MUDIYANSELAGE AMALI UDESHIKA

AMARATHUNGA, Attorney-at-Law;
46. Miss. UMAGILIYA KANKANANGE GAYANI LAKMALI, Attorney-

at-Law;
47. Mrs. WEERASEKARA EKANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE SANDAMALIE

WEERASEKARA EKANAYAKA, Attorney-at-Law;
48. Miss. MADUBHASHANI SANDAMALI BANDULAHEWA, Attorney-

at-Law;
49. Miss. KALUMUNI ASHA RUKMALI, Attorney-at-Law;
50. Miss. SANALI AYOSHANI KULASURIYA, Attorney-at-Law;
51. Mr. NALAKA DASUN DE SILVA, Attorney-at-Law;
52. Miss. RISHANI HARINDRA WICKRAMAGE, Attorney-at-Law;
53. Miss. BERAGAMA VITHANAGE SHROMI DILRUKSHI, Attorney-at-

Law;
54. Mr. SAMPATH VIMANGA WILWARAARACHCHI, Attorney-at-Law;
55. Mrs. NILUSHI DAMAYAANTHI UYANWATTA, Attorney-at-Law;
56. Miss. MATTUMAGODA VITHANAGE NILANKA MAHESHIKA,

Attorney-at-Law;
57. Mr. RASNAKA RALALAGE SUMITH CHAMINDA RATHNAYAKA,

Attorney-at-Law;
58. Mr. JAYASEKARA MUDALIGE SUDANTHA JAYASEKARA, Attorney-

at-Law;
59. Mr. THAMBAVITA MADDUMAGE DEEPAL, Attorney-at-Law;
60. Miss. RATHNAWEERA NADINI CHAMINDRI RABEL, Attorney-at-

Law;
61. Mr. LAWRENCE NOBEL FRANCIS, Attorney-at-Law;
62. Mr. BASNAYAKA RALALAGE KEERTHI GAYAN KUMARA

BASNAYAKA, Attorney-at-Law;
63. Mr. DAMBURE LIYANAGE CHAMINDA KITHSIRI, Attorney-at-

Law;
64. Miss. NAKKAWITA KANKANAMALAGE DINUSTHA CHANDANI

THILAKARATHNA, Attorney-at-Law;
65. Miss. BUDDHIMA DILANKA JAYANI BANDARA AMARATHUNGA,

Attorney-at-Law;
66. Mr. WEERAKKODY ARACHCHILAGE SURANGA ANURADHA

WEERAKKODY, Attorney-at-Law;
67. Mr. SUDESH NILINDRA PETER, Attorney-at-Law;
68. Mr. KORALE GEDARA RANJAN KUMARA SENEVIRATHNA, Attorney-

at-Law;
69. Mrs. HARSHANI UTHPALAWANNA DISSANAYAKA, Attorney-at-

Law;
70. Mr. SAGARA MANOJ WANIGABADU, Attorney-at-Law;
71. Mr. SAMPATHAWADUGE LAKDEEP BIMAL SILVA, Attorney-at-

Law;
72. Miss. GORAKANAGE GAYANI SANJEEWANI GOMAZ, Attorney-at-

Law;
73. Miss. HENDA MARAKKALA ROSHIKA MENIKE SANDAMALI DE

SILVA, Attorney-at-Law;
74. Mr. EKANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDANA THUSHARA

RATHNATHILAKA, Attorney-at-Law;
75. Mr. JAYASUNDARA MUDIYANSELAGE SAMPATH PALITHA

JAYASUNDARA, Attorney-at-Law;
76. Mrs. RANGIKA NILMINIE ARANGALA, Attorney-at-Law;
77. Mr. ADIMALI KANKANANGE DON CHINTHAKA NIROSHA

SANJEEWANA, Attorney-at-Law;
78. Mrs. IMALI APSARA HEWAMADDUMA, Attorney-at-Law;
79. Mr. HASITHA SUPUN ABEYSUNDARA, Attorney-at-Law;
80. Miss. SANDRA MARAKKALA RANKELUM WASANA SOMARATHNA

SILVA, Attorney-at-Law;
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81. Miss. WEDIPPULI ARACHCHIGE RASANJI NIRASHA PERERA,
Attorney-at-Law;

82. Miss. HARINI PRAKARSHI DIAS SENARATH GUNASEKARA,
Attorney-at-Law;

83. Miss. KANKANIGE DONA NILANGANI UPEKSHA, Attorney-at-
Law;

84. Mrs. KANDAUDA ARACHCHILAGE PIYUMI NILUKA DE SILVA,
Attorney-at-Law;

85. Mr. JAYATHUNGA PATABENDIGE SUSIL PRIYANTHA JAYATHUNGA,
Attorney-at-Law;

86. Miss. ARUMUGARAJAN KARTHIKADEVY, Attorney-at-Law;
87. Mrs. RANATHUNGA JAYATHUNGA KORALALAGE DULANI

RANATHUNGA, Attorney-at-Law;
88. Mr. MAKAVITAGE KUMUDITHA ASANGA PERERA, Attorney-at-

Law;
89. Miss. ISHARA PRABHASHANI MADARASINGHE, Attorney-at-Law;
90. Mrs. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE NIROSHA PRIYADARSHANI HERATH,

Attorney-at-Law;
91. Miss. KATHURUSINGHE ARACHCHIGE DONA SHANELA KRISHENI

KATHURUSINGHE, Attorney-at-Law;
92. Miss. KATHURUSINGHE ARACHCHIGE DINA NILEESHA ANUDINI

KATHURUSINGHE, Attorney-at-Law;
93. Miss. PATHTHIYA MUDALIGE SATHSARA GIMHANI, Attorney-at-

Law;
94. Miss. ALAWALAGE DULANJANIE SIRIWARDHANA, Attorney-at-

Law;
95. Mr. ELPITIYE GEDARA KRISHANTHA SANDARUWAN ELPITIYA,

Attorney-at-Law;
96. Miss. DON RANGIKA MARIAN NIRMA SURIYABANDARA, Attorney-

at-Law;
97. Mrs. SWARNADHIPATHI KURUPPUGE KITHMINI DINALI KURERA,

Attorney-at-Law;
98. Mrs. HORAWALA VITHAMNAGE DONA ENAKSHI NAYANTHARA

WETTASINGHE, Attorney-at-Law;
99. Miss. GAM ARACHCHIGE PRARTHANA CHAMRIKA, Attorney-at-

Law;
100. Mr. HEWA THONDILAGE NEELIYA SANDARENU, Attorney-at-

Law;

I, Rauff Hakeem, Minister of Justice by virtue of powers vested in
me by Section 45 (2) of the Judicature Act, No. 2 of 1978 do hereby
cancel the following appointment of:-

1. Mr. Don Seeman Jayantha Kalubowila of No. 205/A,
Ninamadama East, Nainamadama as a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island.

RAUFF HAKEEM,
Minister of Justice.

Ministry of Justice,
16th October, 2012.

11-150

101. Mr. KURUKULASURIYA JOSEPH PATRICK CLIFFORD FERNANDO,
Attorney-at-Law;

102. Miss. RANJAN ENO HELEN MENAKA, Attorney-at-Law;
103. Mr. PULASTHI RUPASINGHE, Attorney-at-Law;
104. Mrs. KARUNAWANTHA MUDIYANSELAGE NERANJALA CHANDANIE

SENARATHNA, Attorney-at-Law;
105. Miss. SALGAMU HEWAGE SAKUNTHALA JAYALATH, Attorney-at-

Law;
106. Miss. LIYANA ARACHCHIGE SAUMYA LIYANAARACHCHI, Attorney-

at-Law;

RAUFF HAKEEM,
Minister of Justice.

Ministry of Justice,
14th October, 2012.
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Government Notifications
My No. : RG/NB/11/2/19/2012/msgq$ie.

NOTICE   UNDER   THE   LAND   REGISTERS   RECONSTRUCTED   FOLIO   ORDINANCE   (CAP. 120)

I  HEREBY give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land Register Folios,
particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting the lands described in Column 2, there of which have been found
to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown
in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

2. The provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested therein at the Office of the Registrar
of Lands, Delkanda, 26.10.2012 to 09.11.2012 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all working days.
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3. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional  folio or against any of the particulars
contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any particulars alleged to have
been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing addressed to the undersigned  which must be sent
under registered cover and must reach the Office of the Registrar General not later than 16.11.2012. The matter in respect of which the
objection or claim in made must be clearly and fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by
all documentary evidence relies upon the support of it.

SCHEDULE

Particulars of Damaged Particulars of Land Particulars of Deeds Registered
Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 07 of volume 2915 of Allotment of Lot 07 of land called “Kosgahalanda” 02. Final decrees (ammendmend) of
  Division M of the Land Registry, is a divided and defined portion from and out of Panadura district court case
  Nugegoda in Colombo District. the North-east side of the land depicted in Plan No. 218/P dated 17.06.2005.
  No. 2559 dated 13.05.2004 made by G. Malwenna,

Licensed Surveyor situated at Makandana in Palle
Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of
Colombo, Western Province bounded on the,

North by : Lot No. 11;
East by : Lot No. 11 and 06;
South by : Land called Kosgahalanda and

divided portion of Kosgahalanda
belongs to heirs of P. A. D. Agiris;

West by : Lot No. 08.
Extent : 00A., 00R., 12.65P.

Folio No. 08 of volume 2915 of Allotment of Lot 08 of land called “Kosgahalanda” 01. Final decrees (ammendmend) of
  Division M of the Land Registry, is a divided and defined portion from and out of Panadura district court case
  Nugegoda in Colombo District. the North-east side of the land depicted in Plan No. 218/P dated 17.06.2005.
  No. 2559 dated 13.05.2004 made by G. Malwenna,

Licensed Surveyor situated at Makandana in
Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of
Colombo, Western Province bounded on the,

North by : Lot No. 11;
East by : Lot No. 07;
South by : Divided portion of Kosgahalanda

belongs to heirs of P. A. D. Agiris;
West by : Lot No. 09 and 10.
Extent : 00A., 00R., 20P.

Folio No. 09 of volume 2915 of Allotment of Lot 09 of land called “Kosgahalanda” 03. Final decrees (ammendmend) of
  Division M of the Land Registry, is a divided and defined portion from and out of Panadura district court case
  Nugegoda in Colombo District. the North-east side of the land depicted in Plan No. 218/P dated 17.06.2005.
  No. 2559 dated 13.05.2004 made by G. Malwenna,

Licensed Surveyor situated at Makandana
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in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of
Colombo, Western Province bounded on the,

North by : Lot No. 10;
East by : Lot No. 08;
South by : Divided portion of Kosgahalanda

belongs to heirs of P. A. D. Agiris
and Road;

West by : Road.
Extent : 00A., 00R., 25P.

E. M. GUNASEKARA,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.  

11-75

REGISTRAR     GENERAL’S    DEPARTMENT

Registration of Place of Worship for Solemnization of Marriages

IN pursuance of the provisions of section 10 of the Marriage Registration Ordinance Cap. 112, I, Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Gunasekara
Registrar General of Sri Lanka, do hereby certify that the under mentioned building used as a place of public Christian worship has been
duly registered for the solemnization of marriage therein.

Number Date of Description Situation Minister Religious
Registration of Denomination

Proprietor on whose
or Trustee behalf the

building in
Registered

1429 10.10.2012 Infant Jesus Watawan, Rev. A. D. Arosh Roman
Church Mundel Priyanga Catholic

Appuhami

E. M. GUNASEKARA,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3, Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.
11th October, 2012.
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Particulars of Damaged Particulars of Land Particulars of Deeds Registered
Folios of the Land Registers
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Revenue and Expenditure Returns
PY/F/PSPF/2010/2011/18. 25th August, 2011

The Director General of Pensions,
Department of Pensions.

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Public Service Provident Fund for the year ended 31st
December, 2010

THE audut of financial statments of the Public Service Provident Fund for the year ended 31st December, 2010 was carried out under my
direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in
conjunction with Section 24 (1) of the Public Service Provident Fund Ordinance (Cap 621). My comments and observation on the above
financial statements appear in this report.

1:2 Responsibility of the Mangement for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. This responsibility includes; designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

1:3 Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. Audit opinion, comments and findings
in this report are based on a review of the financial statements presented to audit and substantive tests of samples of transactions. The
scope and extent of such review and tests were such as to enable as wide an audit coverage as possible within the limitations of staff,
other resources and time available to me. The audit was carried out in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements. The audit includes the examination
on a test basis of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in financial statements and assessment of accounting policies used
and significant estimates made by the management in the preparation of financial statements as well as evaluating their overall
presentation. I have obtained sufficient information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpose of my audit. I therefore believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

2. Financial Statments

2.1 Opinion

So far as appears from my examination and to the best of information and according to the explanations given to me, I am of opinion
that the Public Service Provident Fund had maintained proper according records for the year ended 31st December, 2010 and except
for the effects on the financial statements of the matters referred to in paragraph 2:2 of this report, the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Public
Service Provident Fund as at 31st December, 2010 and the financial results of its operations for the year then ended.

2:2 Comments on Financial Statements

2:2:1 Accounting Deficiencies

Even though the unpaid bonus and interest that should have been credited to the Consolidated Fund in July of the year under
review amounted to Rs. 4,420,024, the Fund had credited a sum of Rs. 44,200,238. Accordingly a sum of Rs. 39,780,214 had
been over credited to the Consolidated Fund and that had been shown inappropriately in the balance sheet as prepayments.
Thus a sum of Rs. 364,652 had been under appropriated to the Government Bonus Contribution Account in the appropriation
of the profit for the year under review.

2:2:2 Accounts Receivable and Payable

The debit and credit balances that should have been settled through the other Ministries and Departments as at the end of the
year under review totalled Rs. 12,936,562 and Rs. 85,823 respectively.
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2:2:3 Non-compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

Instances of non-compliance with the following laws, rules and regulations were observed.

Reference to Laws, Rules and Non-compliance
Regulations

Public Service Provident Fund
Ordinance (Cap 621)

(i) Section 2 (2) Individual accounts for each Contributor had not been maintained.

(ii) Sections 25 According to the above Sections after the close of each financial
year, the Director General of Pensions should inform the
Contributions the balance lying in the Contributors’ accounts
as at 31st December. Nevertheless, such action had not been
taken in the year under review.

(iii) Sections 11 (3) (c) Any undivided surplus remaining after the appropriation of the
profit for a year should be carried forward to the ensuing
financial year and made use of for the appropriation of the
surplus for that year. Nevertheless, the Fund had not taken
action accordingly. The undivided portion of the surplus had
been transferred to a General Reserve Accounts and the balance
of that accounts as at 31st December, 2010 amounted to
Rs. 31,456,580.

3. Financial and Operating Review

3.1 Financial Results

According to the Financial Statements presented, the financial results for the year under review before appropriate to the members
amounted to a surplus of Rs. 2,593,589,969 as compared with the corresponding surplus of Rs. 2,392,356,388, thus indicating an
increase of Rs. 201,232,581 in the financial result as compared with the preceding year. It was observed that the increase of the
interest income by Rs. 198,635,454 or 8.3 per cent as compared with the preceding year had been the reason for this improvement
of the surplus.

3:2 Interest Percentage Declared to Members

The interest per centage declared by the Fund for the members in the year under review and the preceding 10 years had fluctuated
between 11.75 per cent and 7.1 per cent. The interest per centage declared to the members in the year under review as compared with
the preceding year had decreased by 0.85 per cent.

3:3 Interest Income Lost by the Fund

The Government bonus receivable from the Secretary to the Treasury had not been received by the Fund and as such the Fund had
not been deprived of the interest income that could have been earned from the investment of that money. The interest income so
deprived of in the year under review and the preceding year had been as followed.

Year Amount Receivable Potential Profit on Profit Deprived of as a
from the Treasury as at Investment in Treasury Percentage of Profit for

31st December Bonds the year of Accounts

Rs. Rs.

2004 90,490,948 13,754,624 1.4
2005 583,873,124 88,748,714 9.2
2006 1,013381,581 154,034,000 14.6
2007 1,451,131,498 206,060,673 18.8
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2008 1,799,238,475 307,669,779 21.8
2009 1,792,715,215 277,870,858 11.6
2010 1,904,165,223 166,614,457 6.4

––––––––––––
1,214,753,105

––––––––––––––––––––––––

According to the above observations, the investments interest income lost by the Fund in the nearest 07 years amounted to Rs. 1,214.8
milllion.

3:4 Utilization of Staff

The membership of the Fund by the year under review as compared with the year 2003 had improved by 40.16 per cent, but there
had been no change in the number of the staff for carrying out the operations of the Fund. As such it was observed that the number
of members assigned to each officer had increased. The positions with regard to the year under review and the preceding 07 years is
given below.

Year Number of Staff Number of Members
Members Assigned to each Staff

2003 166,000 27 6,148
2004 173,000 27 6,407
2005 197,951 27 7,332
2006 208,012 27 7,704
2007 217,905 27 8,070
2008 221,512 27 8,204
2009 232,779 27 8,621
2010 232,665 27 8,617

A delay in the regular work of the Fund due to the increase in the membership to staff ratio was observed. The Director General informed
that the number of staff had been increased by 08.

3:5 Payment of Benefits to Members

Out of the applications made by the members for the year 2010 for benefits, there were 3,905 applications unpaid by 31st December,
2010 due to the lack of improvement in the number of Staff and that represented 39.9 per cent of the total number of applications.
The position with regard to the year under review and the preceding 05 years is given below.

Year Number of Number of Number of Percentage of the
Applications Applications Paid Applications not Un-paid

Payable during the in the year Paid in the year Applications in the
year year

%
2005 689 670 19 2.8
2006 1,103 622 481 43.6
2007 2,432 1,776 656 27.0
2008 4,014 3,289 725 18.1
2009 6,151 4,194 1,957 31.8
2010 9,787 5,882 3,905 39.9

Year Amount Receivable Potential Profit on Profit Deprived of as a
from the Treasury as at Investment in Treasury Percentage of Profit for

31st December Bonds the year of Accounts

Rs. Rs.
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3:6 Operating Performance

The following observations are made.

(a) According to the Action Plan for the year 2010, the expected targets and the actual achievements of the activities of the Fund are
given below.

Activity Expected As at 31st December, 2010
Target Actual Percentage

Status

(i) Registratin of Contributors 8,000 5,768 72.17%
(ii) Collection of Contributions (Rs. Millions) 1,200 1,293 107.7%
(iii) Investment of Surplus Money (Rs. Millions) 4,000 3,616 90.4%
(iv) Payment of Benefits to Contributors (Rs. Millions) 160 400 250.0%

According to the above data, the expected targets had been achieved in 02 instances while the expected targets had been exceeded in 02
instances. It was observed that the target for the payment of benefits to the contributions had been set unrealistically.

(b) According to the Funds Management Analysis of the Financial Statements for the year under review, one of the 04 basic activities
directed towards the objectives of the fund had been stated as the maintenance of the members’ accounts in a manner to enable the
communication of the and balance of the member’s accounts to the members. Nevertheless, the individual accounts had not been
maintained in a manner to enable the communication of the year and balances as at the end of the year under review to the members.
Nevertheless, a Pilot Project in this connection had been commenced.

3:7 Management Weaknesses

According to Circulars No. 1/97 dated 31st July, 1997 and 14/2006 dated 30th October, 2006 of the Director General of Pensions, an
advices on the money credited to the Fund in each month should be forwarded by the respective institutions to the Secretary of the
Fund before the 15th day of the month following. Nevertheless, the progress relating to the year 2010 had been sent by the Fund to
get such advices to the Fund had not reached the expected level.

4. Systems and Controls

Differences in systems and controls observed during the course of audit were brought to the notices of the Director General of Pensions
from time to time. Special attention is needed in respect of the following areas of control.

(a) Collection of Abatement Registers
(b) Collection of Contributions
(c) Settlement of Erroneous Debit and Credit Balances
(d) Action on Audit Observations.

H. A. S. SAMARAWEERA,
Auditor General.

Observations of the Management Board of Public Service Provident Fund regarding the report of the Auditor General concerning
the accounts of Public Service Provident Fund for the year ending 31.12.2010.

2. Comments on Financial Statements

2:2:1 Accounting Deficiencies

This surplus remained during long period and generally an amount of 15 times of the compulsory contribution should be
credited to the Government bonus money. Reason for this surplus had been the delay to apply for the awards by members after
the termination of membership. However, as these awards are made only to the date on which the membership terminated, the
balance money kept remained in the account. The benefits of interests earned by investing the money is appropriated and
credited to the government bonus money again which caused to the increase of the surplus once more.
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Usually the unpaid bonus money of the awards is credited to the Consolidated Fund by the Treasury Account Summaries at
the year end. At the time when this difference was traced, there was no opportunity to submit supplementary account
summary for the year 2010 and it was ultimately shown as a previous payment in the final account. However this difference
would be adjusted when the unpaid bonus money of the year 2011 is credited to the Consolidated Fund. These amounts figured
in the accounts as this due to the unavailability of correcting the differences without adjusting with General Treasury Books.

2:2:2 Receivable and payable accounts

Despite frequent notices by letters and over the telephone to the concerned Departments and Ministries to settle the balances
remained over 5 years in the erroneous debits, was not taken any action to adhere the instructions. Therefore the above issues
could not rectify. However the action was taken to correct most erroneous debits of year 2010 within the year concerned.

There are no unsettled erroneous debits in year 2008, 2009, 2010 and it was already informed the authorities by letters and
telephone to settle the erroneous debits remained exceeding 4 years.

2:2:3 Non-compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

(a) Public Service Provident Fund Ordinance (Chapter 621) Section (2) 2

1. It has been difficult to make immediate corrections to these errors due to unavailability of proper maintenance of single
accounts from the beginning of the fund. However, steps have been taken to maintain single accounts under the
e-pension project.

2. Section 25

We are hopeful that this issue will be solved as the facility to inform balances to the members is available under the
already started pilot program of the e-pension project.

3. II (3) (b)

Agree. Noted to follow this during the forthcoming financial year.

3. Financial and operating review

3.2 Interest percentage of the members

The average contribution collection from year 1996 to year 2009 has been increased and comparing thereto the appropriated interest
percentage has been decreased due to the high phase of contribution collection over the revenue earned by the interest. Though it is
experienced a higher number of contribution collections, a physical money flowing process cannot be observed as the contributions
credited by monthly account summaries. Therefore the investment oportunities have been lessened and on the other hand the
reinvestments which made on maturity of past investments had to be done on a situation of less interest rate are also considerably
affected to the decrease in the overall interest revenue. Accordingly the appropriated interest percentage also had been reduced.

3.3 The lost interest revenue of the Fund

Letters were sent to the Secretary to the Treasury informing the decrease in appropriated interest percentage due to not receipt of
imprest for government bonus and to settle the account balance of the Deputy Secretary to the Treasury after 2009 and also a
discussion in this regard was held with the patronage of Director General of Treasury Operations.

This was informed also to the Secretary to the Finance Ministry by latter dated 16.03.2009 but the money not received yet.

The statement that this had been happened due to lack of attempt to get remitted the necessary subscription from the Treasury is not
acceptable and would like to inform that we have taken all the necessary steps in this regard. However we have not received the money
yet.

3.4 Staff recourse

We have received more applications comparing to year 2003. However the number of staff in the carder has not grown. Even though
the additional officers attached to this division. the number of staff has been decreased to the previous level on account of officers’
retirements of each year. However at the moment we have attached additional 8 officers to mitigate the delay.
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3.5 Benefit payments for members:

A huge increase in the number of applications to get benefits could observe during year 2008, 2009 and 2010 though there was no
increase in the number of staff comparing thereto which cause delay in the process. To overcome this difficulty and expedite the
payments, we introduced a special project by attaching 8 officers temporarily. We hope that this delay would be minimized in due
course. Comparing to year 2009 the applications received have been dramatically increased by 9 times.

3.6 Operational performance:

(a) Though we expected 8000 registrations in the fund, the membership enrolment could be done on the basis of receipt of applications
only. Therefore it is difficult to achieve the expected targets as the membership registrations done on the basis of applications
received.

Further it is informed that the contribution collection has been exceeded the expected amount which is about 107%. Additional
money investment stepped to 90% due to pumping the money to pay benefits as the receiving applications has been exceeded the
expected targets. This artificiality immerged as a result of abundance in the number of applications received for awards and the
awards that made in year 2010.

(b) We are hopeful that we can overcome this issue as the facility is available under the already initiated pilot program of the e-pension
project.

3.7 Management weaknesses:

Even though the all departments and ministries were educated clalling credit notices by the circular 14/2006 dated 30.10.2006 in
addition to the circular 1/97, the institutions concerned have maintained a procedure of sending a list with cheques or different
manner without following the instructions in above circulars. As a result of these irresponsive conducts, the fund could not meet
with the expected targets of its productive implements. Having indentified these issues the Public Service Provident Fund has
introduced an instruction manual along with Circular 04/2010 dated 25.05.2010 and it is expected the fund would be achieved the
progress predicted. As the success of all these actions depends on the reactions of other institutions is has been difficult to achieve
the expected goals at some times.

K. A. THILAKARATNE,
Director General of Pensions,

Chairman of Management Board of PSPF.

Democratic Socialist Repubilc of Sri Lanka Public Service Provident Fund
Annual Accounts for the year, 2010

2. Review of the Board of Management:

2.1 Objective

The objective and the purpose of the Fund, is to afford Provident Fund benefits to those Public Servants who are, not pensionable.

2.2 Functions

The main functions of the P. S. P. F. are,

(a) To recover and credit the Fund by an amount equivalent to 8% of the monthly salaries of those who are non-pensionable and
are serving in the various departments of the Island and in the foreign missions abroad.

(b) To receive the contributions and to store, such contributions in a methodical manner.

(c) To process and maintain individual accounts of such contributors to enable the contributors to be notified of the amount lying
to their credit at the end of each financial year, and refund the benefits at the end of contributor’s service.

(d) To invest the excess money of the Fund in “Government securities” to enable the contributors to secure a higher interest and
appropriate such interest, at the end of every financial year.
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2.3 Performance Appraisal :

(a) Financial Results

The amount received as Compulsory contribution and Government Bonus during the year under review was Rs. 699,295,538
and Rs. 937,496,299 respectively, while the contributions received during the year 2009 was Rs. 690,149,222 and
Rs. 1,041,744,092 respectively. The total income from investment of the Fund after tax was Rs. 2,601,861,541 as compared
with Rs. 2,399,711,836 last year. After providing for administrative expenses of the fund amounting to Rs. 8,271,573 a sum
of Rs. 2,593,589,969 was available for appropriation as interest to the contributors. The percentage of interest thus available
was 11.03% as compared with the percentage of interest of 11.82% during the pervious year. However, the percentage of
interest rounded up to the nearest quarter being 11.00% amounting to Rs. 2,587,491,119 was appropriated and the balance
amounting to Rs. 6,098,850 was transferred to the General reserve.

(b) Improvement :

(i). Refunds made under the fund

Application received during the year 2010 9,787
Number of refunds approved 5,882

Section under which the refunds made

Section 20 - 4,770
Section 14 - 1,006
Section 16 - 68
Erroneous recoveries - 38

–––––––
Total 5,882

––––––––––––––

(ii). Membership

Number of members as at 01.01.2010 - 232,779
Number of registration during the year - 5,768
Number of refunds awarded - 5,882

2.4 Accounting Policies :

(a) Basis of Accounting

The Financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals and the provision of the
Public Service Provident Fund ordinance No. 18 of 1942.

(b) Rent Electricity and Water Supply

The Board of Management of the Public Service Provident Fund decided to bear the expenses of Rent, Electricity and Water
Supply from the Fund commencing from the year 1993. The expenses already incurred by the Director of Pensions have been
provided in the accounts on the following basis.

Expense Basis

Rent and Electricity Floor area
Water Supply No. of employees

(c) Fixed Assets and Depreciation

(i) The cost of fixed assets is stated at their purchase price.

(ii) No depreciation is charged in the year of purchase and is provided in the year of disposal.
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(iii) Depreciation is provided at the following rates on reducing balance method.

Percentage

Furniture and Fittings 10
Officer Equipment 10
Computer Equipment 15

(d) Revenue Recognition - Interest Income :

(i) Interest income
Interest receivable is generally recognised on an accrued basis.

(ii) Contribution collection
Contribution received is recognised on cash basis.

(iii) Investment
Investments are stated in the Balance Sheet at cost.

Public Service Provident Fund Cash Flow Statement for the year Ended 31st December, 2010

Cash Flow from Operating Activities : 2010 2009
Rs. cts Rs. cts

Compulsory Contribution receipts 699,295,538 690,149,222
Government Bonus receipts 937,496,299 1,041,744,092
Erroneous Contribution receipts 122,545 16,274,924

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––
1,636,914,382 1,748,168,238

Compulsory Contribution paid (326,079,352) (227,981,451)
Government Contribution paid (74,477,134) (47,228,380)
Unpaid Govt. Contribution  Transferred to

Consolidated Fund (393,209,150) (252,038,095)
Erroneous Contribution paid (11,319,647) (31,144,902)

Cash generated from operations : 831,829,100 1,189,775,409
Administration Expenses Paid (7,111,599) (7,293,068)
Creditors - -
Audit fees paid - -

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Cash flow before other income 824,717,501 1,182,482,342

Net Cash generated from operating activities : 824,717,501 1,182,482,342

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Interest Income Received 2,565,082,522 2,067,120,984
Investment realised 7,724,892,600 8,158,105,897
Investment (11,359,473,626) (11,485,880,924)
Improvement of Fixed Assets -

–––––––––––––
Net cash used in investing Activities (1,069,498,504) (1,260,654,043)
Net increased/Decreased in cash and cash equivalents (244,781,003) (78,171,701)

Cash and cash equivalents at begining of the period 2,043,771,928 2,121,943,630
–––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Note 01 1,798,990,925 2,043,771,928
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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Rs.      cts Rs.    cts
Note 01
Cash in hand
Cash at Bank
Cash with D. S. T’s A/c 1,798,990,925 2,043,771,928

––––––––––––– ––––––––––––
1,798,990,925 2,043,771,928

––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Public Service Provident Fund
Receipts and Payments Account for the Year Ended 31st December, 2010

2010 Rs. cts 2009
Rs. cts Rs. cts

Balance with D. S. T. s a/c as at 01st January 2,043,771,928 2,121,943,630
Receipts

Compulsory Contribution 699,295,538 690,149,222
Government Contribution 937,496,299 1,041,744,092
Interest Income 2,565,082,522 2,067,120,984
Erroneous 122,545 16,274,924
Investments Realised 7,724,892,600 8,158,105,897

––––––––––––– –––––––––––––
11,926,889,504 11,973,395,118

Less :
Payments

Compulsory Contribution 326,079,352 227,981,451
Government Contribution 74,477,134 47,228,380
Unpaid Govt. Bonus Transferred

to Consolidated Fund 393,209,150 252,038,095
Administration Expenses 7,111,599 7,293,068
Creditors
Audit Fees
Erroneous 11,319,647 31,144,902
Improvement of Fixed Assets
Adjustment (income and expenditure A/c) -
Investments 11,359,473,626 11,485,880,924

––––––––––––– –––––––––––––
(244,781,003) (78,171,702)

Balance with D. S. T’s A/c as at 31st December 1,798,990,925 2,043,771,928
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Public Service Provident Fund
Income and Expenditure Account for the Year Ended 31st December, 2010

Note 2010 2009
Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts

Income

Interest Income before tax 2,637,973,583 2,439,338,129
Less :- Tax on Interest 36,112,042 39,626,292

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––
Interest Income after tax 1 2,601,861,541 2,399,711,837

Less : Expenditure

Electricity 159,856 172,958
Water 34,378 63,074
Personal Emoluments 7,651,567 6,684,321
Traveling – 498
Stationary and Office Requisites 18,170 15,263
Repairs and Maintenance – –
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Transportation, Communication and
Holiday Warrants 164,641 157,234

Depreciation 67,220 77,575
Uniforms – –
Other Recurrent expenditure 2,700 18,250
Audit fees 173,040 8,271,573 166,275 7,355,448

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Income Over Expenditure 2,593,589,969 2,392,356,389
Add:- Transfer from General Reserve –

–––––––––––– –––––––––––––
Income Available for Appropriation

to the Contributors 2,593,589,969 2,392,356,389
Appropriation of Interest to the Contributors
Compulsory Contribution 1,033,273,467 948,897,373
Voluntary Contribution 1,738,079 1,667,696
Government Contribution 1,552,479,573 2,587,491,119 1,436,853,065 2,387,418,134

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Balance of Interest After Appropriation
Transferred to/(From) General Reserve 6,098,850 4,938,253

–––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

Public Service Provident Fund
Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2010

Assets Note 2010 2009
Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts

Non Current Assets 2

Furniture and Fittings 14,001 15,557
Office Equipment 193,662 215,180
Computer Equipment 250,164 457,828 294,311 525,048

–––––––––– –––––––––
Investment at cost 3 22,322,005,446 18,706,095,421

Current Assets

Interest Receivable 782,875,802 728,519,239
Govt. Contribution receivable 4 1,904,165,223 1,792,718,215
Adjustment A/c 5 12,850,740 5,983,197
prepayment 39,780,214
Balance with D. S. T’ A/c 1,798,990,925 4,538,662,903 2,043,771,928 4,570,992,579

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Total Assets 26,861,126,177 23,277,613,049

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––

Equity and Liabilities
Accumulated Fund 6

Compulsory Contribution 10,639,025,003 9,236,864,908
Voluntary Contribution 17,538,795 15,800,716
Government Contribution 16,149,862,521 26,806,426,318 13,976,345,711 23,229,011,335

––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––

Reserves
Capital reserve 3,790 3,790
General reserve 7 37,555,430 37,559,220 31,456,581 31,460,371

–––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Note 2010 2009
Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts
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Current Liabilities
Accrued Audit Fees 826,241 653,201
Provision for Taxation 8,283,085 9,376,543
Creditors
Accrued Expenses 8 8,031,312 17,140,639 7,111,599 17,141,343

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Total Equity and Liabilities 26,861,126,177 23,277,613,049
––––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

S. N. HAPUARACHCHI, K. A. THILAKARATNE,
Secretary and Accountant Director General of Pensions and
Board of Management Chairman, Board of Management
Public Service Provident Fund Public Service Provident Fund
05th February, 2011. 25th February, 2011.

3.5 Notes to the Accounts

3.5.1 Interest Income 2010 2009
Interest received during the year 2,182,588,177 1,738,167,983
Capital gain/(loss) on Investment 363,823,344 480,848,159

–––––––––––– –––––––––––––
2,546,411,521 2,219,016,142

Less:- Interest receivable as at 1st Jan. 728,519,239 552,366,492
Provision for Tax 9,376,543 13,919,489

–––––––––––– –––––––––––––
Interest received for the year 1,827,268,825 1,680,569,140
Add
Interest receivable as at 31st December

Rupee Loans 80,405,975 134,344,852
Treasury Bills 13,599 26,341
Fixed Deposit 2,424,876 12,098,625
Treasury Bonds 700,031,352 582,049,421

––––––––––– –––––––––––
782,875,802 728,519,239

Less:- Provision for Taxation 8,283,085 9,376,543
Interest for the year 2,601,861,542 2,399,711,836

3.5.2 Fixed Assets
Furniture Office Computer Total
and Fitting Equipment Equipment Value

Cost
As at 01.01.2010 48,946 665,315 696,275 1,410,536
Additions – –

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
As at 31.12.2010 48,946 665,315 696,275 1,410,536

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 01.01.2010 33,389 450,135 401,965 885,488
Charge for the Year 1,556 21,518 44,147 67,221

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

As at 31.12.2010 34,945 471,653 446,111 952,709
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Assets Note 2010 2009
Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts
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Net book value As at 31.12.2010 14,001 193,662 250,164 457,827
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Net book value As at 31.12.2009 15,557 215,180 294,311 525,048
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

3.5.3 Investment

The purchase price of the Investments with the Central Bank was Rs. 22,322 millions.

3.5.4 Govt. Contribution Receivable

This represents the Government Contribution receivable from the Consolidated Fund being 12 % on the compulsory contribution
of the contributors, which is 8 %.

3.5.5 Adjustment Accounts

This account represents the net result of the erroneous debits and credits raised by the various departments. The balance in this
account gets adjusted when the erroneous debits and credits are, adjusted by such departments.

3.5.6 Accumulated Fund

This account represents the amount lying to the credit of the contributors being the share of contributions of the contributors
and the interest thereon together with the Government contributors with interest.

3.5.7 General Reserve

The balance in this account is the amount after appropriation of interest to the nearest quarter percent. A sum of Rs. 6,098,850
being the balance after appropriation was transferred to this account and the balance as at 31.12.2010 was Rs. 37,555,430.

3.5.8 Accrued Expenses

This represents the expenses charged from the consolidated fund during the year under review, including Rs. 194,234 paid by
the Department of Pensions as electricity and water.

2010 2009

Electricity and Water 194,234 236,012
Administration 7,837,078 6,875,586

–––––––––– ––––––––––
8,031,312 7,111,598

–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

S. N. HAPUARACHCHI, K. A. THILAKARATNE,
Secretary and Accountant Director General of Pensions and
Board of Management Chairman, Board of Management
Public Service Provident Fund Public Service Provident Fund
25th February, 2011. 25th February, 2011.

11-110
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Miscellaneous Departmental Notices
PV 84192.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Global  Essilor  Lanka  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Global Essilor
Lanka (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 10.02.2012
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Global Essilor Lanka
(Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the
Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
11th October, 2012.

11-82

PV 64933.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Apollo P S Mouldings  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Apollo P S
Mouldings (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on
24.07.2008 under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 07 of
2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Apollo P S Mouldings
(Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the
Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
11th October, 2012.

11-83

PV 76960.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
S J M Technologies Ceylon (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “S J M
Technologies Ceylon (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated
on “03.02.2011” under the provisions of the Companies Act, No.
07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “S J M Technologies Ceylon
(Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the
Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
11th October, 2012.

11-84

PV 60963.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
I  T  Mart  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “I T Mart
(Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 09.08.2007 under
the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying
on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “I T Mart (Private) Limited”,
will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
11th October, 2012.

11-85
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PV 65818.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Susaru Credit & Investments  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Susaru Credit
& Investments (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on
28.10.2008 under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 07 of
2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Susaru Credit and
Investments (Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office
and the Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
11th October, 2012.

11-86

PV 937.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07  OF  2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Dumbara Energy  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Dumbara
Energy (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 22.07.2004
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Dumbara Energy   (Private)
Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off
the Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company will
be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
15th October, 2012.

11-224

PV 16408.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Sooriya Hospitals  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Sooriya
Hospitals (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 14.06.1999
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Sooriya Hospitals (Private)
Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off
the Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company will
be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
15th October, 2012.

11-223

PV 21105.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Haute Ventures  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Haute Ventures
(Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on “03.12.2003” under
the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying
on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Haute Ventures (Private)
Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off
the Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company will
be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
15th October, 2012.

11-225
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PV 19808.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Edward and Christie Company  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Edward and
Christie Company  (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on
01.07.1994 under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of
1982 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Edward and Christie
Company (Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office
and the Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
15th October, 2012.

11-222

PV 125.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Waverider Engineers  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Waverider
Engineers (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 30.04.2007
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Waverider Engineers
(Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the
Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
15th October, 2012.

11-221

PV 17711.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
South Asian Mail  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “South Asian
Mail (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 29.04.2004
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “South Asian Mail (Private)
Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off
the Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company will
be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
15th October, 2012.

11-220

PV 17.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Golden Harvest Holdings  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Golden
Harvest Holdings (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on
30.04.2007 under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of
1982 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Golden Harvest Holdings
(Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the
Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
15th October, 2012.

11-219
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PEOPLE’S    BANK—GALLE   FORT

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 30.10.2009.

“Whereas Alagiya Hewage Jinadasa” Alagiya Hewage
Priyantha and Alagiya Hewage Channa Prasad have made default
in payment due on the Bond No. 2922 dated 26.08.2008 attested
by Ajantha Kapugamage, Attorney-at-Law and Notary Public of
Galle, in favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due and
owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Three Million One
Hundred and Five Thousand (Rs. 3,105,000) on the said Bond.
The Board of Directors of the People’s Bnak under the powers
vested by in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as
amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises mortgage to the said Bank by the said
Bond  No. 1962 be sold by Public Auction by G. P. Ananda,
Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the sum of Rupees Three
Million One  Hundred and Five Thousand (Rs. 3,105,000) with
further interest on Rupees Three Million One Hundred and Five
Thousand  (Rs. 3,105,000) at 13% per centum per annum from
29.04.2009 to date of sale and costs and moneys recoverable
under Section ‘29L’ of the said People’s Bank Act less payment
(if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A of
contiguous and amalgamated allotments of land called Lots 1 and 2
of Ambagaha Kumbura bearing M. C. Assessment No. 23, Sri
Gunarathna Mawatha, situated at Kumbalwella (also called
Minuwangoda and Old Crips Road) within the Four Gravets of
Galle, Galle District, Southern Province and which said Lot A is
bounded on the North by Railway from Galle to Matara and
Reservation on the East by Lot 3 of the same land, on the South by
Sri Gunaratana Mawatha (Old Crips Road) and on the West by Lot
3 of the same land and containing in extent Twelve decimal Two
Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 12.20P.) depicted in Plan No. 3257 dated
03rd May, 2003 made by K. W. Pathirana, Licensed Surveyor,
together with the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else
standing thereon and registered under A 677/96 at the Land Registry,
Galle.

SEYLAN    BANK    PLC—AGRICULTURAL  BANKING
UNIT

(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the Companies
Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Seylan
Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

Account No. : 0860-02508324-101.

IT is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that at a meeting
held on 25th July, 2012 by the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank
PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously:-

“Whereas Tantulage Dulles Jacab Fernando of Moratuwa as
“Obligor” has made default in payment due on Bond No. 1241
dated 05th November, 2008 attested by S. K. Thepulangoda,
Notary Public in favour of Seylan Bank PLC (Registered under
Ref. PQ 9 according to the Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007) and
there is now due and owing to the Seylan Bank PLC as at 06th
June, 2011 a sum of Rupees Thirteen Million Three Hundred and
Eighty-six Thousand Four Hundred and Forty-nine and cents
Ninety (Rs. 13,386,449.90) on the said Bond and the Board of
Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested by the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990, do hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully
described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank
PLC by the said Bond No. 1241 be sold by Public Auction by
Mr. Thusitha Karunaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of
the said sum of Rs. 13,386,449.90 together with interest at the
rate of Twenty-nine Percent (29%) per annum from 07th June,
2011 todate of the together with costs of advertising, any other
Charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 3
depicted in Plan No. 1309 dated 28th December, 1960 made by P.
Athuraliya, Licensed Surveyor together with the building and
plantations standing thereon of the land called “Ketakelagahawatta
and Embrellagahawatta” bearing Assessment Nos. 77, 77/1, 77/2 and
81, Sri Wickrama Mawatha, situated at Wattala within the Urban
Council Limits of Wattala Mabole in the Ragam Pattu of Aluth Kuru
Korale formerly in the District of Colombo Western Province and
presently in District of Gampaha Western Province and which said
3 is bounded on the North by Sri Wickrama Mawatha, on the East
by St. Mary’s Road, premises bearing Assessment No. 77/4, on the
South by land of Rogus Dias and Simon Dias, premises bearing
Assessment Nos. 77/6 and 77/7 and on the West by Lot 2 and
containing in extent Thirty-three decimal Seven Five Perches
(0A., 0R., 33.75P.) together with the building and everything
standing thereon to the aforesaid Plan No. 1309.

This is registered in volume/folio B 1047/75 at Colombo Land
Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

(Ms.) V. A. PARANAGAMA,
Chief Manager-Legal.

11-134
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The aforesaid land is amalgamation of the following lands and this
may be connected:

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 2 of
Lot 2B depicted in Plan No. 3370A prepared by F. A. Gunasekera,
Licensed Surveyor bearing M. C. Assessment No. 23 of the land
called “Ambagaha Kumbura” situated at Kumbalwella within the
Four Gravets of Galle, Galle District, Southern Province and which
said Lot 2 is bounded on the North by Railway from Galle to Matara
and Lot 1 of the same land and on the East by Lot 3 of the same land
and on the South by Crips Road known as Old Road and on the West
by Lot 1 of the same land and containing in extent Six decimal One
Perch (0A., 0R., 6.1P.) together with the buildings, trees, plantations
and everything else standing thereon and registered under A 567/34
at the Land Registry, Galle.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1 of
Lot 2B depicted in Plan No. 3370A prepared by F. A. Gunasekera,
Licensed Surveyor bearing M. C. Assessment No. 23 of the land
called “Ambagaha Kumbura” situated at Kumbalwella within the
Four Gravets of Galle, Galle District, Southern Province and which
said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Railway from Galle to Matara
and on the East by Lot 2 of the same land and on the South by
abendend Road and on the West by Lot 3 of the same land and
containing in extent Six decimal One Nought Perches (0A., 0R.,
6.10P.) together with the buildings, trees, plantations and everything
else standing thereon and registered under A 567/33 at the Land
Registry, Galle.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Galle.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 22, Lower Dickson Road,
Galle.

11-142

THE   DFCC  VARDHANA   BANK  PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Vardhana Bank
PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that the following
Resolution was unanimously passed on the 24th August, 2012 by
the Board of Directors of DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC.

BOARD RESOLUTION

“Whereas Rogers Agencies (Pvt) Ltd a Company duly
incorporated in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 bearing Registration
No. PV 14829 and having its registered office at Colombo 05
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company) has made default in
payments due on Mortgage Bond No.  3723 dated 12th August,
2005 and Mortgage Bond No. 4705 dated 24th September, 2008
both attested by Wasantha Gunawardhane, Notary Public of
Kurunegala in favour of the DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC.

And whereas there is as at 30th June, 2012 due and owing from
the said Rogers Agencies (Pvt) Ltd to the DFCC Vardhana Bank
PLC a sum of Rupees Thirty-four Million Three Hundred and
Eighty-four Thousand and Sixty-nine and cents Twenty-eight
(Rs. 34,384,069.28) together with interest thereon from 01st
July, 2012 to the date of Sale at the rate of Thirty-two per centum
(32%) per annum out of which a sum of Rupees Sixteen Million
Nine Hundred and Thirty-five Thousand Four Hundred and
Thirty-seven and cents Eleven (Rs. 16,935,437.11) together with
interest thereon from 01st July, 2012 to the date of sale at the rate
of Thirty-two per centum (32%) per annum is due on the
aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 3723 and 4705.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Vardhana
Bank PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do
hereby resolve that the land and premises described below
mortgaged to DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC by the aforesaid
Mortgage Bond Nos. 3723 and 4705 by Meethalawe Aluthgamage
Lanka Bandara Godaliyadda of Colombo 05 being a Director for
and on behalf of the Rogers Agencies (Private) Limited be sold
by Public Auction by Messers. Schokman and Samerawickreme,
Licensed Auctioneers of Colombo for the recovery of the said
sum of Rupees Sixteen Million Nine Hundred and Thirty-five
Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty-seven and cents Eleven
(Rs. 16,935,437.11) together with interest thereon from 01st
July, 2012 to the date of sale at the rate of Thirty-two per centum
(32%) per annum or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the
time of Sale together with the costs of advertising and selling the
said lands and premises and all monies expended and costs and
other charges incurred by the DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC in
accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds
in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTIES MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND Nos. 3723 AND 4705

All that land called Weralugahawatta alias Alubogahawatta
depicted as Lot 10 in Plan No. 1186 dated 04.04.1982 made by
A. P. Kasturiratne, Licensed Surveyor containing in extent One Rood
and Thirty-two decimal Two Four Perches (0A., 1R., 32.24P.)
situated at Mampe in the Piliyandala Town Council Limits in Salpiti
Korale of Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo
Western Province and bounded according to the said Plan on the
North-east by Lots 9 and 11, on the South-east by Lot B belonging
to D. C. Meddage, W. D. Wilbert and P. M. M. Perera, on the South-
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west by land of W. A. Premawathie and on the North-west by
portion of the land of D. S. Abeysekara.

LAKSHMAN SILVA,
Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC,
No. 73, W. A. D. Ramanayake Mawatha,
Colombo 02.

11-165

SAMPATH   BANK   PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended

by No. 01 of 2011 and No. 19 of 2011

Jude Nimal Silva Thomaspulle and Tolkage Christeen Nishamani
Soysa Cardos and N S C Trading Company (Private) Limited.

A/C No. : 1076 5314 7396 and 0076 1000 0066.

AT a meeting held on 30th August, 2012 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously:

“Whereas Jude Nimal Silva Thomaspulle and Tolkage
Christeen Nishamani Soysa Cardos in the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors and the said Jude Nimal Silva
Thomaspulle aforesaid as the Mortgagor have made default in the
repayment of the facility granted against the security of the
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond
No. 236 dated 03rd July, 2006 attested by C. G. Bandara of
Colombo, Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding
Company No. PQ 144.

And whereas N S C Trading Company (Pvt) Ltd holding
Company No. PV 18160 Company duly incorporated under the
Companies Laws of in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri
Lanka as the Obligor and Jude Nimal Silva Thomaspulle as the
Mortgagor have made default in the repayment of the facility
granted against the security of the property and premises
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and
hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 41 dated 10th January,
2008 attested by C. G. Abeywickrama of Colombo, Notary
Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company No. PQ
144.

And whereas there is now due and owing on the said Bond
Nos. 236 and 41 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 24th

March, 2010 a sum of Rupees Twelve Million Five Hundred and
Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy-three and cents
Ninty-eight only (Rs. 12,508,973.98) of lawful money of Sri
Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the said Bonds and
the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under the
powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Bank (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for
the said facilities by the said Bond bearing Nos. 236 and 41 to be
sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathie, Licensed Auctioneer
of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Twelve
Million Five Hundred and Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and
Seventy-three and cents Ninety-eight only (Rs. 12,508,973.98)
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Six Million Five
Hundred and Eighty-four Thousand only (Rs. 6,584,000) at the
rate of Fourteen per centum (14%) per annum and further interest
on a further sum of Rupees One Million only (Rs. 1,000,000) at
the rate of Twenty-two per centum (22%) per annum from 25th
March, 2010 to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the
said Bond bearing Nos. 236 and 41 together with costs of
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A
depicted in Plan No. 15095A dated 23rd August, 1996 made by
M. D. J. V. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called
“Millagahawatta and Millagahahenawatta” together with soil, trees,
plantations, buildings and everything else standing thereon and
together with all rights, ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and
appurtenances thereto bearing Assessment No. 65/5, Colombo Road
situated at Kandana within the Kandana Sub Office area of Ja-Ela
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Registration Division of Gampaha in the
Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha
Western Province and which said Lot A is bounded on the North by
Premises of the Swadeshi Industrial Works and Lot 3A of Douglas
Dabarera, on the East by Premises of Swadeshi Industrial Works and
Land formerly of Chariotte Perera now of Gamini Perera, on the
South by Road 8 feet wide and on the West by Lot 2A1 of Ranjith
Rodrigo, Lot 3A of Douglas Dabarera and Road 10 feet wide (Lot 5)
in Plan No. 220A of made by H. G. C. Dias, Licensed Surveyor and
containing in extent Thirty-five decimal One Five Perches
(0A., 0R., 35.15P.) according to the said Plan No. 15095A and
registered in B 556/261 at the Land Registry, Gampaha.

Together with the right of way over and along:

Lot 5 (Road reservation 10 feet wide) depicted in Plan No. 220A
dated 20th May, 1990 made by H. D. C. Dias, Licensed Surveyor
registered in B 578/196 at the Land Registry, Gampaha.
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PRADESHIYA     SANWARDHANA    BANK

Notice published under Section 04 of the Recovery of
Loans by Banks (Special Provision) Act, No. 04 of 1990

empowered by Section 43 of Regional Development Banks
Act, No. 06 of 1997

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was passed by the
Board of Directors of Wayamba Development Bank on 27.04.2010
under the Recovery of loans by Banks (Special Provision) Act, No.
04 of 1990 empowered by Section 43 of Regional Development Bank
Act, No. 06 of 1997.

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Where as Yapahami Mudiyanselage Swarna Kusum Wickrama
Nissanka and Imihami Mudiyanselage Mutumenika of “Asoka
Stores, Nithalawa, makulewa” have made default in the payment due
on mortgage Bond No. 4522 dated 17.10.2006 attested by
Mr. Sandya, L. Edirimuni, Attorney at Law and Notary Public and
in favour of the Wayamba Development Bank and there is now due
and owing to the said Wayamba Development Bank, a sum of Rupees
Two Hundred Sixty-three Thousand Two Hundred Seven and cents
Sixty-one (Rs. 263,207.61) Capital and interest from 30.11.2009
calculated at the rate of Twenty-four per centum (24%) per annum
on the said defaulted loan balance. The Board of Directors of the
Wayamba Development Bank to hereby resolve that the property
mortgaged to the bank under the said mortgage Bond No. 4522
morefully described in the schedule hereto be sold by Public auction
by M/s. Schokman and Samarawickrama, Licensed Auctioneer for
the recovery sum together with the said interest or any part thereof
remaining unpaid at the time of the sale and the interest due sum,
together with the cost of advertising and sale and other expenses
incurred by the Recovery of loans by Banks (Special Provision) Act,
No. 04 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked depicted
in Village Plan No. 3963 of the Land called “Nithalawagama”
presently Para Addarawatta situated at Maha Nithalawa, in
Hatalispaha Korale East, Wanni Hathpattuwa, in the District of
Kurunegala, North Western Province, and which said Para
Addarawatta is bounded on,

Road depicted in Plan No. 3255 dated 30th July, 1996 made by
W. S. S. Perera, Licensed Surveyor and registered in B 579/172 at the
Land Registry, Gampaha.

By order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

11-207

North: by Road way;
East: by Fence of the Land belonging to Pinhami;
South: by Tank;
West: by Fence of the Land belonging to Awusadahami

The above Land was resurveyed.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot No. 01
depicted in Plan No. 2004/115 dated 16.05.2004 made by Mr. O. G.
Nimalsiri, Licensed Surveyor of the Land and which said Lot No. 01
is bounded on,

North: by Road way from Gallewa to Makulewa;
East: by Fence of the Land belonging to I. M. Pinhami;
South: by Tank and reservation for the Tank;
West: by Land belonging to Y. M. A. Muthubanda, previously

it was belonging to Awusadahami.

Containing in extent of One Acre (01A., 00R., 00P.)
(Hect. 0.4047) together with everything standing thereon.

Registered under the title J/05/185 at the land Registry,
Nikaweratiya.

By order of the Board of Directors,

U. B. SEMASINGHE,
Regional General Manager.

Pradeshiya Sanwardhana Bank,
Wayamba Province Office,
No. 155, Negombo Road,
Kurunegala.
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THE    DFCC  BANK

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank under
Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special

Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that the following
Resolution was unanimously passed on the 29th August, 2012 by
the Board of Directors of DFCC Bank.

BOARD RESOLUTION

“Whereas New Gold Star Saw Mill (Private) Limited a
Company duly incorporated in the Democratic Socialist Republic
of Sri Lanka under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 bearing
Registration No. PV 60080 and having its registered office at
Wadduwa (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) has made
defualt in payments due on Mortgage Bond No. 8607 dated 13th
July, 2007 and attested by D. A. Punchihewa, Notary Public of
Kalutara in favour of the DFCC Bank.
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And whereas there is as at 31st July, 2012 due and owing from
the said New Gold Star Saw Mill (Private) Limited to the DFCC
Bank a sum of Rupees Eleven Million Nine Hundred Thousand
Nine Hundred and Sixty-two and cents Sixty-seven
(Rs. 11,900,962.67) together with interest thereon from 01st
August, 2012 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Ten Million
Forty-five Thousand Six Hundred and Thirty-two (Rs.
10,045,632.00) at the rate of Seven per centum (7.0%) per annum
above the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR)
rounded upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum which will be
revised every three months on the first business day of January,
April, July and October each year.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank under
the powers vested in them by the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 and the Development
Finance Corporation of Ceylon Act, No. 35 of 1955 as
subsequently amended, do hereby resolve that the land and
premises described below mortgaged to DFCC Bank by the
aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 8607 be sold by Public Auction by
Messrs. Schokman and Samerawickreme, Licensed Auctioneers
of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Eleven
Million Nine Hundred Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty-two
and cents Sixty-seven (Rs. 11,900,962.67) together with interest
thereon from 01st August, 2012 to the date of sale on a sum of
Rupees Ten Million Forty-five Thousand Six Hundred and
Thirty-two (Rs. 10,045,632.00) at the rate of Seven per centum
(7.0%) per annum above the Average Weighted Prime Lending
Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum
which will be revised every three months on the first business day
of January, April, July and October each year or any portion
thereof remaining unpaid at the time of sale together with the costs
of advertising and selling the said land and premises described
below and all monies expended and costs and other charges
incurred by the DFCC Bank in accordance with the covenants of
the aforesaid Mortgage Bond in terms of Section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND No. 8607

The entirety of the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything
else standing thereon of the land called contiguous Lots A and B of
Lot 1A of Mawathaboda Kosgahawatta depicted in Plan No. 3293
dated 06th and 24th of May, 1987 made by U. M. de Silva, Licensed
Surveyor situated at Pothupitiya in Wadduwa Waskadu Debadde in
Panadura Totamune in the District of Kalutara Western Province and
which said Lots A and B are bounded on the North by Pelawatta alias
Moodillagahawatta, on the East by Lot C of this land, on the Southby
Lot M (8 feet wide right of way) of this land and on the West by
Walpola Pelawatta and containing in extent Twenty-five decimal Six
Six Perches (0A., 0R., 25.66P.) as per Plan No. 3293 aforesaid and
registered at the Land Registry, Panadura.

The entirety of the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything
else standing thereon of the land called Lot C of Lot 1A of
Mawathaboda Kosgahawatta situated at Pothupitiya aforesaid and
which said Lot C is bounded on the North by Pelawatta alias
Moodillagahawatta, on the East by Lot D of this land, on the South
by Lot M (8 feet wide right of way) of this land and on the West by
Lot B of this land and containing in extent Fifteen Perches (0A., 0R.,
15P.) as per Plan No. 3293 aforesaid and registered at the Land
Registry, Panadura.

The entirety of the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything
else standing thereon of the land called Lot D of Lot 1A of
Mawathaboda Kosgahawatta situated at Pothupitiya aforesaid and
which said Lot D is bounded on the North by Pelawatta alias
Moodillagahawatta, on the East by Colombo-Galle High Road and
Lot E of this plan, on the South by Lots E and M (8 feet wide right
of way) of this Plan and on the West by Lot C of this land and
containing in extent Twenty Perches (0A., 0R., 20P.) as per Plan
No. 3293 aforesaid and registered at the Land Registry, Panadura.

The entirety of the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything
else standing thereon of the land called contiguous Lots K and L of
Lot 1A of Mawathaboda Kosgahawatta situated at Pothupitiya
aforesaid and which said Lots K and L are bounded on the North by
Lot M (8 feet wide right of way) of this land, on the East by Lot J
of this paln, on the South by Lots 1D, 1C and 1B in Plan No. 3109
and on the West by Walpola Pelawatta and containing in extent
Twenty-four Perches (0A., 0R., 24P.) as per Plan No. 3293 aforesaid
and registered at the Land Registry, Panadura.

Together with both foot and vehicular traffic in over and along
Reservations described hereto:-

Lot M (reservation for road 8 feet wide) of Lot 1A of Mawathaboda
Kosgahawatta situated at Pothupitiya aforesaid and which said Lot
M is bounded on the North by Lots A, B, C and D in Plan No. 3293,
on the East by Colombo-Galle High Road, on the South by Lots L,
K, J, H, G and F in Plan No. 3293 and on the West by Walpola
Pelawatta and containing in extent Six decimal Seven Perches
(0A., 0R., 6.7P.) as per Plan No. 3293 aforesaid and registered at the
Land Registry, Panadura.

Together with Machinery and everything else standing thereon
owned by New Gold Star Saw Mill (Private) Limited.

A. N. FONSEKA,
General Manager.

DFCC Bank,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.
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PEOPLE’S    BANK—DEVINUWARA    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 29.10.2010:-

“Whereas Sellahennadige Donald De Silva, Tekla Chithrani
Daluwatta and Karuna Muthumala have made default of payment
due on Mortgage Bond bearing No. 321 dated 31.10.2008 attested
by M. G. C. Aroshini, Notary Public, Matara in favour of the
People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the said People’s
Bank a sum of Rupees Five Hundred and Thirty-six Thousand
Two Hundred and Fifty-eight and cents Forty (Rs. 536,258.40)
only on the said mortgage Bond No. 321.

The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the
powers vested by the People’s Bank Act No. 29 of 1961 as
amended by Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said
Mortgage Bond No. 321 be sold by public Auction by G. P.
Ananda, Licensed Auctioneer of Matara for recovery of the said
sum of Rupees Five Hundred and Thirty-six Thousand Two
Hundred and Fifty-eight and cents Forty (Rs. 536,258.40) only
with further interest on Rupees Five Hundred and Thirty-six
Thousand Two Hundred and Fifty-eight and cents Forty
(Rs. 536,258.40) only at Twenty-six per centum (26%) per

annum from 24.06.2009 to-date of sale with costs and moneys
recoverable under section ‘29L’ of the said People’s Bank Act,
less payment (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined Lot 03 depicted in Plan No. 4491
dated 02.12.2007 made by K. G. S. Yapa, Licensed Surveyor of
contiguous lands called Lot A1 of Lot A of Western Portion of
Ambagahalanda and Lot 01 of Lot B and Lots C4 and C5 of Lot C of
Western Portion of Ambagahalanda situated at Dondra, Wellaboda
Pattu, Matara District, Southern Province and which said Lot 03 is
bounded on the North and West by Pradeshiya Sabha road, East by
Lot C3 of the same land, South by Lot 02 of the same land in Plan
No. 3470 and Lot A2 of the same land in Plan No. 4490 and containing
in extent One rood and Four Perches (0A., 1R., 4P.) and together with
all the buildings, plantations and everything else standing thereon
and registered at B 648/92 Matara District Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager (Matara).

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No.215, Anagarika Dharmapala Mawatha,
Nupe,
Matara.

11-143



1101I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2012'11'02
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 02.11.2012

NEW SCALES OF CHARGES FOR NOTICES AND ADVERTISEMENTS IN THE
 "GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA"

EFFECTIVE AS FROM JANUARY  01, 2009

(Issued every Friday)

1. All Notices and Advertisements are published at the risk of the Advertisers.
2. All Notices and Advertisements by Private Advertisers may be handed in or sent direct by post together with full payments to the

Government Printer, Department of Government Printing, Colombo 8.
3. The office hours are from 8.30 a.m. to 4.15 p.m.
4. Cash transactions will be from 9.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m.
5. All Notices  and  Advertisements must be pre-paid. Notices and Advertisements sent direct by post should be accompanied by

Money Order, Postal Order or Cheque made payable to the Government Printer. Postage stamps will not be accepted in payment of
Advertisements.

6. To avoid errors and delay "copy"  should be on one side of the paper only and typewritten.
7. All signatures should be repeated in block letters below the written signature.
8. Notices re-change of name from Non-Government Servants and Trade Advertisements are not accepted for publication.
9. Advertisements purporting to be issued under Orders of Courts will not be inserted unless signed or attested by a Proctor of the Supreme

Court.
10. The authorised scale of charges for Notices and Advertisements is as follows from January 01, 2009 :-

   Rs. cts.
One inch or less ... ... ... 137 00
Every addition inch or fraction thereof ... ... ... 137 00
One column or 1/2 page of Gazette ... ... ... 1,300 00
Two columns or one page of Gazette ... ... ... 2,600 00

(All fractions of an inch will be charged for at the full inch rate.)
11. The "Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka" is published every Friday. Day of publication is subject to

alteration in any week where Public Holidays intervene.
12. All Notices and Advertisements should reach the Government Printer, Department of Government Printing, Colombo 8, as

shown in Schedule of Separate Notice published at the end of each part of the Gazette  of the first week of every month.
13. REVISED SUBSCRIPTION RATES EFFECTIVE FROM JANUARY 1ST 2009 :

*Annual Subscription Rates and Postage
Price Postage

Rs.  cts.  Rs. cts.
Part I :

Section I             ... ... ...                ...             ... 2,080 00 3,120 00
Section II (Advertising, Vacancies, Tenders, Examinations, etc.) 1,300 00 3,120 00
Section III          ... ... ... ... ... 780 00 3,120 00

Part I (Whole of 3 Sections together) ... ... ... 4,160 00 6,240 00
Part II                ... ... ... ... ... 580 00 3,120 00
Part III               ... ... ... ... ... 405 00 3,120 00
Part IV (Notices of Provincial Councils and Local Government) 890 00 2,400 00
Part V                ... ... ... ... ... 860 00 420 00
Part VI               ... ... ... ... ... 260 00 180 00
Extraordinary Gazette ... ... ... ... 5,145 00 5,520 00

Subscription to the “Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka” are booked per periods of not less
than 12 months so as to terminate at the end of a calendar year only.

* Rates for Single Copies (if available in stock)
Price Postage

Rs.  cts.  Rs. cts.
Part I :

Section I             ... ... ... ... 40 00 60 00
Section II            ... ... ... ... 25 00 60 00
Section III          ...    ... ... ... 15 00 60 00

Part I (Whole of 3 Sections together)... ... ... 80 00 120 00
Part II                ... ... ... ... 12 00 60 00
Part III               ... ... ... ... 12 00 60 00
Part IV (Notices of Provincial Councils and Local Government) 23 00 60 00
Part V                ... ... ... ... 123 00 60 00
Part VI               ... ... ... ... 87 00 60 00

*All remittances should be made in favour of the Superintendent, Government Publications Bureau, No. 132, Maya
Avenue, Kirulapone, Colombo 05, who is responsible for booking subscriptions and for sale of single copies.
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IMPORTANT  NOTICE  REGARDING  PUBLICATION   OF  GAZETTE

THE Weekly issue of the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka is normally published on
Fridays. If a Friday happens to be a Public Holiday the Gazette is published on the working day immediately
preceding the Friday. Thus the last date specified for the receipt of notices for publication in the Gazette also varies
depending on the incidence of public holidays in the week concerned.

The Schedule below shows the date of publication and the latest time by which notices should be received
for publication in the respective weekly Gazette. All notices received out of times specified below will not be
published. Such notices will be returned to the sender by post for necessary amendment and return if publication
is desired in a subsequent issue of the Gazette. It will be in the interest of all concerned if those desirous of ensuring
the timely publication of notices in the Gazette  make it a point to see that sufficient time is allowed for postal
transmission of  notices to the Government Press.

The Government Printer does not accept payments of subscription for the Government Gazette.
Payments should be made direct to the Superintendent, Government Publications Bureau, No. 132, Maya Avenue,
Kirulapone, Colombo 05.

Note.—Payments for inserting Notices in the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka
will be received by the Government Printer and not by the Superintendent, Government Publications Bureau.

THE SCHEDULE

Month Date of Publication Last Date and Time of
Acceptance of Notices for
Publication in the Gazette

2012

NOVEMBER 02.11.2012 Friday — 19.10.2012 Friday 12 noon
09.11.2012 Friday –– 25.10.2012 Thursday 12 noon
16.11.2012 Friday –– 02.11.2012 Friday 12 noon
23.11.2012 Friday –– 09.11.2012 Friday 12 noon
30.11.2012 Friday –– 16.12.2012 Friday 12 noon

DECEMBER 07.12.2012 Friday — 23.11.2012 Friday 12 noon
14.12.2012 Friday –– 30.11.2012 Friday 12 noon
21.12.2012 Friday –– 07.12.2012 Friday 12 noon
28.12.2012 Friday –– 14.12.2012 Friday 12 noon

2013

JANUARY 04.01.2013 Friday — 21.12.2012 Friday 12 noon
11.01.2013 Friday –– 28.12.2012 Friday 12 noon
18.01.2013 Friday –– 04.01.2013 Friday 12 noon
24.01.2013 Thursday –– 11.01.2013 Friday 12 noon

B. K. S. RAVINDRA,
Acting Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing,
Colombo 08,
23rd June, 2012.

PRINTED  AT  THE  DEPARTMENT  OF  GOVERNMENT  PRINTING,  SRI  LANKA.
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